
Board Meeting
October 19, 2023



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 2 of 53



 CORPUS CHRISTI DOWNTOWN MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

9:00 a.m., Thursday, October 19th, 2023 
IBC Bank, 221 S. Shoreline, 2nd Floor 

Corpus Christi, TX 78401 

1) Determination of quorum
2) Call to Order

CONSENT AGENDA 
(At this point, the Board of Directors will vote on all motions, resolutions not removed for individual consideration) 

3) Minutes of the Annual Board of Directors Meeting of September 15th, 2023.
4) Financial Statements.
5) Report on absences from 2023 DMD Regular Board of Directors meetings with possible action.

AGENDA 
6) PUBLIC FORUM:

Please limit presentations to three (3) minutes. If you plan to address the Board during this time, please
sign the designated form giving your name, address and topic.

7) City and Partnering Organizations Reports:
a. Proposition A
b. Dia de los Muertos Festival

8) DISTRICT OPERATIONS:
a. Clean Team / Block by Block
b. Road Work Updates

9) PLACEMAKING:
a. On Call Architecture & Engineering Services with Possible Action
b. Downtown Parking
c. Holiday Installation Schedule

10) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:
a. Projects

11) PROMOTIONS:
a. ArtWalk
b. Special Events
c. Programming

12) ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT:
a. Audit RFP Results – Update with Possible Action
b. Expansion Schedule & Campaign
c. International Downtown Association Conference – Chicago

13) Board Requests for Next Meeting:
14) Adjourn.
• EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Public Notice is given that the DMD Board of Directors may elect to go into executive session at any time during the meeting in order to discuss any matters listed on the agenda, when authorized 
by the provisions of the Open Meeting Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, and that the Board of Directors specifically expects to go into executive session on the following matters.  In 
the event the Board of Directors elects to go into executive session regarding an agenda item, the section or sections of the Open Meetings Act authorizing the executive session will be publicly
announced by the presiding officer. 
Posted: County Clerk, Nueces County Courthouse.        District Office, 921 N Chaparral STE 100.     City Secretary, Corpus Christi City Hall IBC Bank, 221 S. Shoreline, 2nd Floor 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 4 of 53



Minutes, Annual Board of Directors Meeting September 15th, 2023 
MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
CORPUS CHRISTI DOWNTOWN MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corpus Christi Downtown Management District was held at 
9:00 a.m. on Friday, September 15th, 2023, at IBC Bank, 2nd Floor, 221 S Shoreline, Corpus Christi, TX 78401 
pursuant to call and notice in accord with the Texas Open Meetings Act, District Bylaws, and District policy. 
The following Directors are present for the meeting: Charles, Gignac, Lain, Lomax, Maxwell, Molina, 
Peterson, Richline, Shook, & Votzmeyer-Rios.   Also present: A. Mason, A. Albin, K. Acock, E. Beardmore, J. 
Bodwell, D. Campos, A. O’Donnell, V. Villarreal, & P. Wiggins CCDMD, D. Watson, Block by Block, J. Bell of 
Wood, Boykin, Wolter P.C. 

Chairman Peterson determined a quorum at 9:00 a.m. Item 1 & called meeting to order Item 2. 
Chairman Peterson moved to the CONSENT AGENDA, Items 3, 4, & 5 on the agenda.  
A motion was made by R. Charles to approve the Consent Agenda. 
This was seconded by J. Richline and was passed unanimously. 

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 6 on the agenda. 
6) PUBLIC FORUM: 

There were no comments from the public. 

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 7 on the agenda. 
7) PUBLIC HEARING:
Chairman Peterson opened the public hearing on the 2023-2033 Service and Improvement Plan and
Assessment Plan for the District.
There being no public comment or objections to the proposed plan or proposed assessments Chairman
Peterson called for a motion to close the Public Hearing.
R. Gignac made the motion to close the Public Hearing and this was seconded by C. Votzmeyer-Rios and
passed unanimously.

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 8 on the agenda. 
8) ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT:

a. 10 Year Authorizations:
i. Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-01 To Approve the CCDMD FY 2023-2033 District Service Plan.

Review with Possible Action.
C. Votzmeyer-Rios made a motion to approve Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-01, this was seconded
by J. Richline and passed unanimously.

ii. Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-02 To Approve Adopting the assessment roll for properties located
within the District & approving the levy of an assessment to fund improvement projects & services
for ten fiscal years with Possible Action
R. Charles made a motion to approve Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-02, this was seconded by B.
Molina and passed unanimously.

b. Annual Authorizations:
i. Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-03 To Approve the Certified Tax Roll. Review with Possible Action.

J. Richline made a motion to approve Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-03, this was seconded by R.
Charles and passed unanimously.

ii. Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-04 To Approve the Assessment Levy. Review with Possible Action.
J. Richline made a motion to approve Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-04, this was seconded by C.
Votzmeyer-Rios and passed unanimously

iii. Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-05 To Approve the CCDMD FY 2023-2024 District Service Plan and
Budget. Review with Possible Action.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 5 of 53



B. Molina made a motion to approve Resolution FY 2022-2023 Sep-05, this was seconded by C.
Lain and passed unanimously.

c. Audit RFP – Update with Possible Action
There were no respondents to the RFP which will be reissued with an extended timeline.

d. TIRZ#3 Service. Review with Possible Action.
Ms. Mason presented an updated CCDMD & TIRZ #3 Service Plan Matrix and requested Board
approval for the revised document.
C. Lain made a motion to approve the revised plan, this was seconded by R. Charles and passed
unanimously.

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 9 on the agenda. 
9) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

a. TIRZ #3 Adopted Programs & Initiatives: Rooftop Activation Program. Review with Possible
Action. Ms. Mason provided an overview of the proposed new program and requested Board
approval.
A motion of approval was made by J. Richline, seconded by R. Gignac and passed unanimously

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 10 on the agenda. 
10) BOARD REQUESTS FOR NEXT MEETING:

a. There were no requests.

Chairman Peterson moved to Item 11 on the agenda. 
11) Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 9:18a.m.

_________________________   Glenn Peterson, Chairman. 

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 6 of 53



Corpus Christi Downtown Management District. 

ASSETS 

Balance Sheet 

As of September 30, 2023 

Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 

1000 • Bank Deposits 

1100 • Petty Cash 

1150 • PayPa1 

1215 • American Bank Operating Account 

1223 • American Bank EFT Account 

1284 • American Bank Office Account 

Total 1000 • Bank Deposits 

Total Checking/Savings 

Accounts Receivable 

11000 • Accounts Receivable 

Total Accounts Recelvable 

Other Current Assets 

2000 • Current Assets 

2200 • Prepayments 

2300 • Inventory Asset 

Total 2000 • Current Assets 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

20000 • Accounts Payable 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 

23100 • Accruals 

25500 • Sales Tax Payable 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 

30000 • Opening Balance Equity 

32000 • Unrestricted Net Assets 

Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Sep 30, 23 

15.56 

4,275.49 

5.058.78 

80.639.97 

2.183.84 

92,173.64 

92,173.64 

160,520.00 

160,520.00 

9,583.52 

1,372.41 

10,955.93 

10,955.93 

263,649.57 

263,649.57 

50,906.72 

50,906.72 

55,535.60 

13.64 

55,549.24 

106,455.96 

106,455.96 

160,983.44 

22,079.58 

-25,869.41

157,193.61 

263,649.57 

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 7 of 53CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 7 of 53



4:24 PM 

10/12/23 

Accrual Basis 

Corpus Christi Downtown Management District. 

Condensed Profit & Loss Budget Performance 
September 2023 

Sep23 Oct '22 • Sep 23 Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 139,160.22 1,927,868.19 1,952,435.00 

Gross Profit 139,160.22 1,927,868.19 1,952.435.00 

Expense 

60000 • Dlstrict Operations 55,631.88 612,258.15 633,319.00 

62000 • Economic Development 0.00 10,800.00 11,000.00 

63000 • Placemaklng 270.63 247,157.17 241,072.00 

64000 • Promotions 18.891.45 277.501.86 244,900.00 

65000 • Organizational Management 63,411.37 806,020.42 825,066.00 

69800 • Uncategorized Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 

69810 • Transfer to Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Expense 138,205.33 1,953,737.60 1,955,357.00 

Net Ordinary Income 954.89 -25,869.41 -2,922.00

Other Income/Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Net Income 954.89 -25,869.41 -2,922.00

% of Budget 

98.74% 

98.74% 

96.68% 

98.18% 

102.52% 

113.31% 

97.69% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

99.92% 

885.33% 

0.0% 

885.33% 

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 8 of 53CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 8 of 53



Board Attendance Records 2023

# Directors - 2023 - attendance Appt Exp Bond Cell# 1/19 2/16 3/16 4/20 5/18 6/15 7/20 8/17 9/15 10/19 Absences
1 Barrera, Jaime. N 4/3/20 9/30/26 1/23 361-563-5083 √ √ √ 1 √ √ √ 1 1 3
2 Charles, Robert 12/8/15 9/30/26 1/23 361-815-8199 √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 0
3 Gignac, Raymond 8/21/01 9/30/24 1/23 361-442-4345 √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 0
4 Gutschow, Eric 9/12/17 9/30/26 1/23 361-510-4899 √ √ √ 1 √ √ √ 1 1 3
5 Kucewicz, Krystof 5/21/20 9/30/24 1/23 505-570-0685 √ √ √ 1 √ √ 1 √ 1 3
6 Lain, Casey 6/8/10 9/30/26 1/23 361-510-9863 √ √ √ √ √ √ 1 √ √ 1
7 Lomax, Lesley 10/17/19 9/30/24 1/23 361-215-0858 √ √ √ √ √ √ 1 √ √ 1
8 Maxwell, Janet [Treasurer 9/22-9/24]* 12/18/12 9/30/24 1/23 361-739-8442 1 √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 1
9 Molina, Ben (replaces Lomax, B) 12/15/22 9/30/26 1/23 361-774-0525 √ 1 √ √ √ √ √ √ 1

10 Perez, Dee Dee  [Vice-Chair 2/22-9/24]* 6/8/10 9/30/26 1/23 361-673-2800 √ 1 √ √ √ √ √ √ 1 2
11 Peterson, Glenn [Chair 2/22-9/24] * 6/8/10 9/30/26 1/23 361-765-7117 √ √ 1 √ √ 1 1 √ √ 3
12 Richline, Josh [Secretary 2/22-9/24] * 10/17/19 9/30/26 1/23 361-510-0561 1 √ √ 1 √ √ √ 1 √ 3
13 Shook, Caitlin 4/10/18 9/30/26 1/23 361-774-6724 1 √ √ √ 1 √ √ 1 √ 3
14 Trevino, Adrienne (replaces Boyd, C) 1/19/23 9/30/24 1/23 361-946-9541 √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 1 1
15 Votzmeyer-Rios, Cheryl 4/9/19 9/30/24 1/23 361-728-7041 √ √ 1 √ √ √ √ 1 √ 2

Number in attendance 10 14 12 11 14 14 11 10 10
9

[9] 5
[6]

* indicates Officer

September 2023 - voting Present Consent. 7a 7b 8ai 8aii 8bi 8bii 8biii 9a
Barrera, Jaime. N 2
Charles, Robert √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Gignac, Raymond √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Gutschow, Eric 2
Kucewicz, Krystof 2
Lain, Casey √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Lomax, Lesley √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Maxwell, Janet [Treasurer 9/20-9/22]* √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Molina, Ben (replaces Lomax, B) √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Perez, Dee Dee  [Vice-Chair 2/21-9/22]* 1
Peterson, Glenn [Chair 2/21-9/22] * √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Richline, Josh [Secretary 2/21-9/22] * √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Shook, Caitlin 9:09 √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Trevino, Adrienne (replaces Boyd, C) 3
Votzmeyer-Rios, Cheryl √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

October 2023 - voting Present Consent.
Barrera, Jaime. N
Charles, Robert
Gignac, Raymond
Gutschow, Eric
Kucewicz, Krystof
Lain, Casey
Lomax, Lesley
Maxwell, Janet [Treasurer 9/20-9/22]*
Molina, Ben (replaces Lomax, B)
Perez, Dee Dee  [Vice-Chair 2/21-9/22]*
Peterson, Glenn [Chair 2/21-9/22] *
Richline, Josh [Secretary 2/21-9/22] *
Shook, Caitlin
Trevino, Adrienne (replaces Boyd, C)
Votzmeyer-Rios, Cheryl

Term to 9/30/26
Term to 9/30/24

√ - In Attendance

In accordance with the BYLAWS of the CORPUS CHRISTI DOWNTOWN MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, Section  3.2.

"After 3 unexcused absences or 5 total absences in a calendar year for any reason at regularly called Board of Directors meetings, a Board member's resignation will be required. 

An excused absence is one of the following:     (1) Illness or death in the family;  (2) Out of town; (3) Unavoidable family, personal or business related emergencies. 
Any other absence is (4) unexcused."

Directors should advise Staff by email in advance of any anticipated absence quoting one of the reasons listed above.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 9 of 53



8. District Operations

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 10 of 53



Clean Team / Block by Block Update
Street Lights – Obstructed Views
• Five Locations downtown with intersections obstructed by trees
• Additional sixth location at Artesian Park requiring a boom lift

Before  After

Before 

After

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 11 of 53



Clean Team / Block by Block Update
Chaparral Street – Obstructed Parking
• Oak trees on Chaparral scratching top of vehicles
• Over 20 trees and 200 branches removed
• Trees cut back just enough to create clear parking lanes

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 12 of 53



Clean Team / Block by Block Update

Before  After

Before 

After

Artesian Park - Repairs
• New homeless population inhabiting park
• CCDMD working with police to mitigate destruction
• Worked with Parks & Recreation to replace broken boards in gazebo
• Completely repainted floor boards and replacement side boards

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 13 of 53



Road Work Updates
Schatzell & Lawrence Streets

• 9/28 - Notice of impending
roadwork sent out along with a map.

• 10/6 - Reminder notice sent out
three days prior to roadwork
starting.

• 10/16 - Meeting requested with the
city.

• 10/18 - Meeting held. Waiting
for updates from the city.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 6 of 53CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 6 of 53

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 14 of 53



9. Placemaking

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 15 of 53



RFQ: On‐Call Architecture & Engineering 
Services
• Closed RFQ on 9/29.

• Received one response from
Design Workshop.

• Scored 85/85 points
• Contract for engagement
• Working on order of
operations with City
• Projects for FY24 include

• Agnes / Laredo Entry to
Downtown

• Urban Design Standards
• Pet friendly spaces in downtown

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 16 of 53



Memo 

To: DMD Board of Directors 

From: Alyssa B. Mason, Executive Director 

Date: October 19, 2023 

Subject: RFQ for On-Call Architecture & Engineering Services Results 

Action Requested 

We request that the board take action to approve the contract outlining the on-call services relationship 
between the Downtown Management District and Design Workshop for Architecture and Engineering 
Services. 

Overview 

The DMD has budgeted for specific one-time projects for FY2024 through the TIRZ #3. The projects 
include: 

• Design for the Agnes / Laredo Entrance to Downtown
• Urban Design Standards
• Strategic Plan for Dog Parks
• Water Street reimagined Peer Review Services

The DMD posted a Request for Qualifications on September 7th to request on-call services for 
Architecture & Engineering Services, and received one response on September 28th from Design 
Workshop. The statement of qualifications received was thorough and provided a comprehensive 
overview of the company’s abilities and successes. Design Workshop scored a total of 85/85 points in 
the evaluation criteria set. 

Evaluation Criteria Available Points Score 
Firm’s Qualification and Relevant Experience 20 20 
Demonstrated Qualifications of Personnel and Team 25 25 
Proposed Approach and Methodology 20 20 
Past Performance and References 20 20 

Total 85 85   
Financial Stability PASS / FAIL PASS 

Additionally, Design Workshop is the firm that previously worked with the DMD to create the concept 
for the Water Street Reimagined project.  

Attached is the contract provided by Design Workshop outlining the nature of the on-call relationship. 

Attachments 

• Contract

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 17 of 53



October 18, 2023 
Alyssa Mason 
Downtown Management District 
223 N Chaparral Street,STE A 
Corpus Christi, TX 78401 

Dear Alyssa, 

Design Workshop is pleased to offer this scope of services for the Corpus Christi 
Downtown Management District Work Order #1 for General on-call Urban Design & 
Landscape Architecture Services. This work is for the calendar year of November 
2023 to November 2024. We understand that this task will serve as a work order to 
perform services on an On-Call basis as needed. This scope aligns with the 
District’s RFQ issued on September 7th, 2023, including projects such as but not 
limited to: updating the District’s Urban Design Standards, Agnes/ Laredo 
Entryway, Dog Friendly Spaces, Water Street peer review services, and Artesian 
Park Design. We understand that as specific projects arise, DW will generate 
separate work orders.  

Based on our previous discussions, this work order will be invoiced on a time and 
materials basis not to exceed $75,000. DW recognizes that client approval of 
fee/scope is required in writing before any services can be performed. All 
applicable information and payment terms listed in the master agreement between 
the CCDMD and Design Workshop shall be applicable for this work order.  

By signing this letter, you are authorizing Design Workshop, Inc. to commence 
services immediately on a time and materials basis, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of the master agreement. Thank you again for this opportunity. Should 
you have any questions, please call me at (954) 591-0203 or email me at 
bchambers@designworkshop.com regarding this proposal. 

Respectfully, 

Brian Chambers, PLA | Principal 

APPROVED BY CORPUS CHRISTI DOWNTOWN MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

By: ____________________________  Date:  

Title:    

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 18 of 53

mailto:bchambers@designworkshop.com


Attachment A 
Contract Provisions 

1. All fees, commissions, and expenses billed shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date of billing.  Interest on unpaid or
late bills shall accrue at 1 3/4 percent interest per month (21.0% A.P.R.). In the event of non-payment, such unpaid amounts
shall constitute and become a lien upon the property for which professional services are being performed or completed.
Design Workshop may, at its discretion, assert its right to file and foreclose upon such lien, in addition to pursuing any other
remedies permitted by law.  Client agrees that all statements not objected to in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt are
agreed to be final and binding upon the parties as to the amounts due, the adequacy of Design Workshop's performance,
and the value of the services provided to Client. If Client does not pay Design Workshop within thirty (30) days of the date of
billing and Design Workshop consults with an attorney for collection, then, in addition to all sums due, Client agrees to pay
all costs incurred by Design Workshop associated with collection, including Design Workshop’s reasonable attorney’s fees
and reasonable court costs. Additionally, in the event Client brings any claim(s) against Design Workshop in any lawsuit,
arbitration, or other form of binding dispute resolution (hereinafter “Proceeding”), if Client is not the prevailing party in its
claim(s) against Design Workshop or if Design Workshop is dismissed from the Proceeding for any reason (including by
stipulation, agreement, court order, or voluntary withdrawal of claims by Client), then Client shall pay all costs incurred by
Design Workshop associated with defending against the claim(s), including Design Workshop’s reasonable attorney’s fees
and reasonable court or arbitration costs.

2. When any invoice is outstanding and unpaid thirty (30) days after the date of billing, Design Workshop may, at its discretion,
stop work on the project.  In addition, when any invoice is outstanding and unpaid ninety (90) days after the date of billing,
Design Workshop may withdraw from any governmental agency review process any applications, drawings, submittals or
other project documents reflecting Design Workshop’s services. No notice of Design Workshop’s intent to stop work or to
withdraw from any governmental review process shall be required.  Client forever releases, discharges and holds Design
Workshop harmless from any and all liability arising out of Design Workshop’s withdrawal of any applications, drawings,
submittals or other project documents.  Client shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Design Workshop against any
and all claims for liability asserted by any project participant for any action taken by Design Workshop under this paragraph.

3. If the project is suspended or abandoned, in whole or in part, for a period of ninety (90) days or more, or upon instruction by
Client to Design Workshop to suspend activity on the project, Design Workshop shall be compensated for all services
performed together with all reimbursable expenses due and the Agreement shall be deemed terminated.  If the project is
resumed after such suspension, the Agreement between Client and Design Workshop shall be renegotiated prior to
resumption of services by Design Workshop.  Such renegotiation shall include a fee for remobilization costs incurred by
Design Workshop.  In the event that this Agreement is terminated due to the suspension or abandonment of the project,
Client shall make full payment to DW for all compensation due hereunder within 30 days of receipt of a final invoice from
DW. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "suspension" or "abandonment" shall mean substantial discontinuance of
labor, services, and expenses for a ninety (90) day period or written instruction by Client to suspend substantially all project
activities.

4. Design Workshop reserves the right to raise hourly rates at its own discretion during the course of this project.  Any such
increases, however, will not result in an increase in the total fees identified in this proposal unless specific services are being
provided on a time and materials basis.

5. All drawings, specifications and other work product, including those in electronic form, prepared by or through Design
Workshop are the Instruments of Service for use solely with respect to this project.  Design Workshop shall be deemed the
author and owner of their Instruments of Service and shall retain all common law, statutory, and other rights, including
copyrights.

Design Workshop grants the Client a nonexclusive license to reproduce Design Workshop’s Instruments of Service solely for
the purposes of constructing, using and maintaining this project, provided that Client shall comply with all obligations,
including prompt payment of all sums when due, under this Agreement.  The Client shall be permitted to retain copies,
including reproducible copies of drawings and specifications for information and reference in connection with the Client's use
and occupancy of the project.  The Client shall be permitted to authorize its contractors, subcontractors and material
suppliers to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service appropriate to and for use in the execution of this
project. The drawings and specifications shall not be used by the Client on another project, except by agreement in writing
between Design Workshop and Client. Neither Client nor any of its contractors or separate consultants shall make edits or
changes to Design Workshop’s Instruments of Service without the express written approval of Design Workshop.

Any unauthorized use of or changes to the Instruments of Service without Design Workshop's consent shall be at the
Client's sole risk and without liability to Design Workshop.  The Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Design Workshop,
and Design Workshop's subconsultants from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited
to payment of attorney's fees, arising out of unauthorized use of the Instruments of Service that are part of this project.

Design Workshop shall not be responsible or liable for any direct, actual or consequential damages which occur as the result
of its inability to produce the Instruments of Service by reason of the casualty, destruction or loss of documents that occurs
through no fault of Design Workshop.

Design Workshop shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work to be performed by the

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 19 of 53



contractors on the project, nor shall Design Workshop be responsible for the contractor’s failure to perform the work in 
accordance with the requirements of the Instruments of Service or the contractor’s agreement with the Client. 

6. Should the project be published in a book, magazine, newspaper, or publication for public circulation, or if a job sign is
erected, Design Workshop should be listed as the planner/landscape architect.  In addition, this Agreement represents non-
exclusive approval by the Client for publication and award submissions of the project by Design Workshop.

7. The parties agree not to solicit for employment any employee of the other with whom the parties have had contact as a
result of this Agreement, while the candidate is employed by the other party, and for twelve (12) months following
termination of such employment, unless specifically agreed to in writing.

8. In the event of a default of any provision of this Agreement, after ten (10) days notice to cure is delivered, this Agreement
may be deemed terminated by the non-defaulting party.  For purpose hereof, any failure to pay sums due in accordance with
Paragraph 1 shall be deemed default.  Either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience and without cause upon
thirty (30) days written notice by either party.  If Client terminates this Agreement for convenience, DW shall be
compensated for Services performed prior to termination, together with reimbursable expenses then due.

9. Design Workshop shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by similar
professionals practicing in the same manner and similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. Design Workshop
and Client waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating to the
Agreement.  This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s
termination in accordance with Paragraph 8.

10. All notices and other communications that are required or permitted to be given to the parties under this Agreement shall be
sufficient in all respects if given in writing and delivered in person, by electronic mail, by telecopy, by overnight courier, or by
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the receiving party at the following address:

If to Design Workshop: If to Client: 

Telephone: Telephone: 

or to such other address as such party may have given to the other by notice pursuant to this Section.  Notice shall be 
deemed given on the date of delivery, in the case of personal delivery, electronic mail, or telecopy, or on the delivery or 
refusal date, as specified on the return receipt in the case of certified mail or on the tracking report in the case of overnight 
courier. 

11. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason held invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed separate
and shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions herein.

12. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives.  Client
shall not assign this Agreement without the consent of DW.

13. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written instrument executed by both parties.

14. This Agreement (together with the attached Exhibits, which are incorporated herein by this reference) constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties and supersedes prior understandings, written or oral.  No waiver under this Agreement shall
be valid unless it is given in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged therewith.

15. This Agreement shall be governed by the Laws of the State of Colorado. The parties agree that venue for any dispute
between them arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in the City and County of Denver, State of Colorado.

16. In construing this Agreement, (i) the singular includes the plural and vice versa, (ii) reference to any document means such
document as amended from time to time, (iii) “include” or “including” means including without limiting the generality of any
description preceding such term, (iv) the word “or” is not exclusive, and (v) references to this Agreement or Sections or
paragraphs of this Agreement refer to this entire Agreement including all exhibits, schedules, and Addendum attached
hereto, as the same may be amended from time to time.

17. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between Client and Design Workshop and supersedes all
prior negotiations, warranties, representations, promises or agreements, either written or oral, and with direct or indirect,
connected in any way with this Agreement.  Client agrees that it is not relying on, and Design Workshop has not bound by,
any representations, claims or promises made by Design Workshop or any of it agents or employees, or contained in any
marketing or other materials, unless they are expressly included in this Agreement.

18. Client and Design Workshop acknowledge that achieving any performance objectives is dependent upon many factors
beyond Design Workshop’s control, such as Client’s use and operation of the project; the work provided by other contractors
and consultants; and interpretation of the finished project by any applicable authority or inspection agency. Performance
objectives can include sustainability environmental goals, economic goals, social goals and other similar objectives that can
be measured.  Accordingly, Design Workshop does not warrant or guarantee that the project will achieve any performance
objectives unless expressly stated otherwise in this Agreement.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 20 of 53



Other conditions 
(Insert additions and modifications to the Standard Contract Provisions.) 

13426088_v5 

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 21 of 53



EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION HOURLY BILLING RATES

PRINCIPAL $225 to $450

ASSOCIATE / LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT $110 to $200

INTERN $65

PROJECT ASSISTANT $110 to $150

Note:  Other Project Specialists will be billed at their applicable billing rates not to exceed $250

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 22 of 53



Downtown Parking

• City began installing 2-hour
parking limit signs along
unmetered sections of Chaparral
St.

• Revisited 2018 proposed parking
improvement plan to improve
downtown off-street parking
lots.

• Requested pricing from City on
paving 8 downtown lots.

• Approval from TIRZ #3 Board to
pilot pervious parking surface.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 23 of 53



Holiday Installation Schedule

• The Port Holiday Tree
• 10/23‐10/27: Frame
• 11/1: Panels

• 10/27: Tree Lights in Parks
• 11/1: Peppermint Lane
• 11/1‐11/3: Artesian Park
Winter Wonderland
• 11/13‐11/27: H‐E‐B
Christmas Tree

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 24 of 53



10. Economic Development

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 25 of 53



Thirsty (New Construction)
Location 1002 N. Chaparral Street

Description • The restaurant will offer a full day
”prop” brunch menu with fine dining
options for dinner.

• Either of the two bars will offer
dramatically presented alcoholic and non-
alcoholic “photo-friendly" drinks.

• The business will offer valet service,
a rooftop patio, a new first floor bar
and kitchen build out, second floor bar
and seating area, and a new parking lot that
will double as an event space.

Project Cost $ 2,493,600

Incentive
Proposed

• Vacant Building Program  $465,000

• Streetscape & Safety Program $153,500

Completion Date December 30, 2024

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 26 of 53



Holiday Inn Express (New Construction)
Location 1102 S Shoreline Blvd

Description • The South Tower phase will be made into a Holiday
Inn Express with details of the next phase still being
finalized.

• This project includes a complete renovation of the
interior and infrastructure as well as: a complete
redesign of the façade, lobby entrance canopy, lobby
roof, rooftop event center, elevators and stairs to
reach the rooftop event center, a resurfaced and
restriped parking lot, landscaping, a pedestrian
walkway around the property, lighting, upgraded
security cameras, murals, signage, new doors and
fencing.

Project Cost • $19,871,896

Incentive
Proposed

• Streetscape & Safety - $1,000,000
• Rooftop Activation- $1,000,000

Completion Date • January 30, 2025
Bay

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 27 of 53



BUC Commission (Update)

Location 1316 N Chaparral Street

Description • BUC Commission is renovating this space to
be its future headquarters and event space.

• Exterior improvements include: a new
awning, exterior lighting, patio
improvements, concrete pathways,
landscaping, security cameras, door/
window replacement, and signage.

• The project will be completed October 16th
with a ribbon cutting scheduled for October
19th.

• They were issued a temporary Certificate of
Occupancy.

Project Cost • $1,794,093

Incentive
Proposed

• Streetscape & Safety Program- $200,000

Completion 
Date

• May 31, 2024

Bay

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 28 of 53



Jason Wolf Law Firm (Update)

Location 226 Tancahua Street

Description • The Law Office of Jason Wolf will be
the new home of 20-year criminal
defense attorney, Jason Wolf, and other
local attorneys.

• Exterior improvements include: roof repair,
windows, paint, lighting, signage, security
cameras, and repaving the parking lot.

• They have completed the exterior wall
paint, parking lot, lighting, roof repairs,
window replacement, and security camera
installation.

Project Cost • $58,638

Incentive
Proposed

• Streetscape & Safety Program- $29,319

Completion Date • July 30, 2024

Bay

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 29 of 53



The Northwater (Update)
Location 1001 N Water Street

Description • This property is being restored into a 5 story, 58-
unit multifamily building.

• Improvements include: plumbing, elevator
upgrades, apartment unit finish outs, pool
upgrades, fencing, sidewalk repair, lighting,
security cameras, and a repaved parking lot.

• HVAC units are currently being installed. A new
fire alarm has been installed. Floors are being
sealed, and plumbing being completed. Kitchen
cabinets and tub/showers are in. Parking lot and
fencing going to start this month.

• They are requesting an extension to complete
the remainder of the work.

Project Cost • $5,011,315

Incentive
Proposed

• Downtown Living Initiative- $580,000
• Project Specific- $98,000

Completion Date • December 31, 2023

Bay

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 30 of 53



11. Promotions

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 31 of 53



MusicWalk 2023
Friday, September 1st
• 26,000 Visits in '23

• 17,300 in '22

• Over 380 Businesses involved including:
• ✨ 9 Event Sponsors
• 🎤🎤 8 Live Music Venues
• 💘💘 8 ArtWalk Business Partners
• 🌇🌇 25+ Downtown Businesses
• 🎸🎸 55+ Bands & Musicians
• 🎪🎪 213 Pop-up Vendors & Local Artists
• 🍔🍔 27 Food Trucks
• 🏙🏙 6 State & City Departments
• 🎉🎉 10 Block Party Curators
• 🎥🎥 13 Media Companies
• 🔊🔊 8 Production Companies
• 🚧🚧 3 Maintenance Companies

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 32 of 53



MusicWalk 2023
Friday, September 1st

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 33 of 53



• 29,700 Visits in ‘23
• 21,700 in ‘22
• 11,800 in ‘21
• 12,200 in ‘20
• 15,500 in ‘19

• Businesses & Vendors
• 12 Block Curators
• 187 Vendors & food trucks (58 in '22)
• 22 Businesses Showcased

• Entertainment
• 13 Block Parties + 2 Park Parties
• 8 Stages
• 20 Musicians/Performers

• Traffic Control Plan Notice
• Notice sent out to downtown businesses

about road closures with attached map on
9/29, a week before the event. Reminder
notice sent out 10/4, two days prior.

October ArtWalk 2023
Friday, October 6th

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 34 of 53



October ArtWalk 2023
Friday, October 6th

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 35 of 53



Upcoming Events
• October 2023

• 10/6 - ArtWalk - MORE INFO BELOW
• 10/6 - HYPBYKE Anniversary & Bike Show
• 10/6-7 - Pride Block Party & Parade at Water's

Edge Park
• 10/6 - All Request Piano @ Old Kress Live
• 10/14 – 5k Beer Run @ Nueces Brewing
• 10/14 – Annual Solar Eclipse
• 10/19 - Third Thursday @ the Art Museum
• 10/21 - Surftoberfest @ Surf Club & Water Street

Market
• 10/25 - Grow Local Harvest Party @ Art Center
• 10/28 - Dia de los Muertos Festival @ Downtown
• 10/28 - Kevin Gates @ Concrete Street
• 10/28 - CC Queso Fiesta @ BUS
• 10/29 - Chicken Shiz Bingo @ The Annex

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 36 of 53



DBA
• September Meeting 9/20

• @ Lazy Beach Brewing Co.
• 7 Presenters...
• 42 attendees

• Safety & Security Training 9/20
• Det. JT Smith & Lt. Henry Mangum
• 34 attendees

• DBA Members
• 32 Members for '23-'24
• Still signing businesses on!

• October Meeting 10/18
• @ Nueces Brewing Co.

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 37 of 53



Run Club
• Facilitate micro-communities of interest groups

and promote health-focused programming

• Partnerships
• Fleet Feet – Presenting Sponsor
• Lazy Beach – September After Party
• Nueces Brewing – October After Party
• CC Run Club After Dark – Co-producer/promoter

• Run Club Stats
• 509 total members (38 increase since last month)
• 277 runners in September

• Health-focused Programming
• Running – Run Club, Safe Fun Fit, Beer Run
• Biking – Saturday Night Light Ride, HYPEBYKE
• Yoga – Water Dog, Somos, Third Thursdays, Beer Yoga
• Pickleball – Al Kruse, BUS (coming soon)
• Gyms / Crossfit – All Good, Neptune
• Others?

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 38 of 53



12. Organizational Management

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 39 of 53



Audit RFP Results 

• Issued 3 Times
• Specialized Type of Audit
• 2 Responses – March Timeframe

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 40 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 41 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 42 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 43 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 44 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 45 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 46 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 47 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 48 of 53



CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 49 of 53



Expansion Schedule & Campaign ‐ Update

• Need Residence Inn & Post Acute Hospital
• Conducting Percentage Analysis with New Values

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 50 of 53



International Downtown Association Conference - 
Chicago
Sessions attended:
• Tu Mexico, Tu Chicago!
• The Future of Michigan Avenue
• South Shore Rising
• Preparing Downtown Districts
• LaSalle Street Reimagined
• GLOWing Downtowns – Light Art Experiences
• Leveraging Partnerships to Serve Detroit Neighborhoods of All Sizes
• Proving Your Value – Methods for Measuring
• Engaging the Media
• The Importance of Aligning Organizational & Individual Values
• Tomorrowland – Sharing Small-Town History
• A Tale of Two Cities
• Winning the War on Talent – Recruitment & Retention
• Best Practices for Small Budget BID/BIA/BIZs
• We’re in the Money 501(c)(3)’s Revenue
• The Journey of the Ambassador
• Creating a Layered Approach to Community Safety
• Innovative & Compassionate Solutions to Working with the

Unhoused
• Parks as Centerpieces of Downtowns



13. Board Requests
for Next Meeting

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 52 of 53



14. Adjourn

CCDMD October 2023 Board Meeting 53 of 53


	CCDMD Board Presentation October 2023.pdf
	Board Meeting
	8. District Operations
	Clean Team / Block by Block Update
	Clean Team / Block by Block Update
	Clean Team / Block by Block Update
	Road Work Updates
	9. Placemaking
	RFQ: On-Call Architecture & Engineering Services
	Downtown Parking
	Holiday Installation Schedule
	10. Economic Development
	Thirsty (New Construction) 
	Holiday Inn Express (New Construction) 
	BUC Commission (Update) 
	Jason Wolf Law Firm (Update) 
	The Northwater (Update) 
	11. Promotions
	MusicWalk 2023 �Friday, September 1st
	MusicWalk 2023 �Friday, September 1st
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Upcoming Events
	DBA
	Run Club
	12. Organizational Management
	Audit RFP Results 
	Slide Number 27
	International Downtown Association Conference - Chicago
	13. Board Requests �for Next Meeting
	14. Adjourn

	5. Board Attendance Records September 2023.pdf
	2023

	On-call proposal agreement.pdf
	DWI Standard Contract Provisions.pdf
	Other conditions

	Published Billing Rates - 2023.pdf
	Sheet1





